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This notice must provide the practitibner with notice that the practitioner may “prevent the
complaint by exercising his right “to demonstrate or achieve compliance with all lawful
requirements.” See 31 C.F.R. § 10.54.

If the practitioner fails to comply or demonstrate compliance affer notice, then the
IRS may initiate a complaint requesting disbarmem. Again, however, the rules impose
strict requirements on the complaint process to protect the due process rights. of the
practitioner against an abusive, over-reaching government agency.

The administrative adjudication anticipates a contested trial, mirroring the
hallmark principles of American juétice —notice of the exact facts of the allegation; the
right to legal representation in defense againsf the allegations; opportunities to conduct
depositions and admit documents; an evidentiary hearing to challenge accus‘ers and

" present exculpatory evidence; and a clear judgment making findings of fact and law in
support of any decision. Wary of the judgments of administrative law judgés, often
employees of the government \Nithouf the political limits imﬁésed on real judges, the
rules permit an appeal to another independent official, with a right to review of the record
de novo as to any issues of law.

The first part of the administraﬁVe process involves the complaint. The
regulations governing this proceeding require that a “complaint shall give a plaiﬁ and
concise description of the allegations which constitute the basis for the proceeding.” See
31 CF.R. §10.56. In assessing whether the allegations contained in the complaint a;fe
sufficiently descriptive, the facts within the complaint must be of sqch specificity that the
complaint “fairly informs the respondent of the charges against him so that he is able to

prepare his defense.” See id.



Throughout the proceedings, the rules expressly authorize the administrative law
judge to conduct discovery, order depositions, subpoena witnesses_, schedule an open
hearing, hear testimony, admit evidence, and invite érgument on the Iegal issues. See 31 |
C.FR. § 10.64. The rules do not permit judgment on the pleadings. See 31 CFR.§
10.70 (requiring the ALJ issue an opinion only upon “the conclusion of a hearing.”)

The hearing itself must be conducted according to federal administrative law. See
5 U.S.C. § 556. Thus, the agency always has the buyden of proof. See 5 U.S.C. § 556.
The ALIJ cannot order disbarment unless “reliable, probative and substantial evidence”
supports the judgfnent. See id. To insure the eyidence is in fact “reliable’ and
trustwortﬁy, the law relies on those hallmarks of American justice to determine the
tmthfulness of an allegation — the right to testify, the right to present evidence, the right
to submit rebuttal evidence, and the right to conduct cross examination, all in open court.
See id. As the statute étates:

A party is entitled to present his case or defense by oral or docﬁmentary
-evidence, to submit rebuttal evidence, and to conduct such cross-examination
as may be required for a full and true disclosure of the facts.
5 U.S.C. § 556.

Neither party must rely on the preliminary recommendation of the ALJ for the
final agency decision. Thus, the rules permit appeal to a higher-ranking Treasury
Depaﬁment official to review the.cas‘e, with no deference to the ALJ on any matters of
law. See 31 CFR § 10.71. The recommendation of the ALJ is not a final érder until the
Secretary approves it or both parties accept it. See 31 C.F.R. § 10.73. The IRS cannot

publish notice of the ruling until “issuance of the final order.” See31 C.F.R. § 10.74.



Of note, in their repeated pattern of rule violations, the IRS published notice of
the ruling before the issuance of a final order. Apparently, the IRS assumed the Secretary
would just rubber stamp the judgment.

III. . The Administrative Law Judge Erred As a Matter of Law in Disbarring
Banister. ,

The Administrative Law Judge erred as a matter of law in disbarring Banister.
The IRS never afforded Banister any opportunity to achieve compliance and never
alleged willful violation of the rules, as required. See 31 CFR § 10.52; see also 5
U.S.C. § 558. Moreover, the IRS complaint faﬂed to allege the requisite facts and
attempts to punish Banister for conduct outside the scope of the authority of the Director
of Practice. Furthermore, this disbarment violates Banister’s First and Fifth Amendment
rights, including his rights to freedom of express.ion, freedom of association, right to
petition the government, right against self-incrimination, and his right to due process of
law. Finally, the éomplete denial of discovery, the wholesale exclusion of Banister’s
evidence, the denial of any cross—examination, and the prohibiﬁon of any hearing on the
‘merits require vacating the recommendation of the ALJ.

1. The IRS Never Gave Banister Meaningful Noticg of the Allegations

The Secretary must reverse the recommendation of the ALJ to disbar Banister for
allegations in the first complaint because the IRS failed to afford Banister an opportunity
to achieve compliance, never alleged willful violation of any of the practitioner rules, and
the never fairly informed Banister of all the facts. See 31 CFR 10.56. The Secretary‘
must reverse the recommendation of the ALJ to disbar Banister for allegations in the
amended complaint because the IRS ne{/er notified Banister of the charges prior to

commencing the complaint, the IRS failed to afford Banister an opportunity to achieve
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compliance, the IRS failed to allege willful v-iolaﬁon of fhe rules, and the conduct could
not be punished by the Director of Practice because the conduct did not éonstitute
“practice before the IRS.”

‘ rNeither vcomplaint ever alleges that Banister’s conduct took place during his
répresentation of any taxpayer before the IRS or that his conduct constituted practice
before the IRS. Neither complaint ever alleges that Banister willfully ignored the rules of
practice before the IRS. Hence, both complaints must be dismissed.

Moreover, the precepts of Constitutional due process, the prerequisites of
Administrative Procedures Act, and the provisions mandated by the regulations
themselves require an allegation and proof of willfulness before the government can
disbar any Congressionally licensed practitioner. The IRS never alleged, nor proved, any
willful violation of any IRS practitioner regulatién. Given the absence of any allegation
of willful violation of a regulation, the IRS never provided the mandatory notice of an
opportunity to comply with the rules, which is a condition précedent to any complaint or
action for disbarment.

Finally, the entire proceeding negated any due process protection inherent in the
rules detailed regulatory methodology.

For example, the-first complaint originated from a deficient and suspect report.
The report filed by the agent was untimely, relied on information outside the permiésible
scope of the regulations, and made allegations b;sed on political conduct, not practitioner
conduct. The IRS agent who made the report engaged in a private investigation of
Banister, including surreptious monitoring of his disclosure of whistle-blowing activities

and political statements, unauthorized investigation of Banister’s private employment
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records with the agency, unauthorized interrogation of Banister’s prior employer, and
attempt to entrap Banister during Banister’s representation of a taxpayer.

Similarly, the second complaint originated frpm the pblitical monitoring of
Banister’s free speech on a radio shoﬁv and the secret, illicif audit by an IRS official.

In the same vein, both complaints exemplify inadequaté nbtice. Both complaints
fail to plead sufficient facts to fairly inform Banister of what facts he must disprove to
protect his right to practice before the agency.

To begin.With the evident errors in the first complaint, the first complaint never
avers what allegedly false factual representations were made by Banister.‘ The first
complaint plays a shell game with the facts. The first complaint never alleges any factual
statements Banister made “during his :rep‘resentation of clients” and in his presentation to
the IRS. Statements outside that context are simply free speech and outside the
jurisdiction of the Director’s authority to sanctipn. '

Indeed, the first complaint is analogous to a complaint alleging fraud as follows:
“John told someone the car was gfeen. That someone is a taxpayer.r Johnisa
practitioner.” Then, from those facts alleging that John committed fraud and disputable
conduct, without ever alleging the statement was made during represe_ntation before the
IRS, to a client whose liabilities were being disputed before tﬁe IRS, and the statement
came in a presentation to the IRS intended to reduce the tax liabilities of the client
represented. Worse yet, the IRS never even alleged the obvious requirement for fraud
- itself -- alleging the car was not green.

The same kind of defect pervades the IRS” first complaint. For example, the first
compléint alleges Banister “took a position” that had “no substantive basis in the law or

fact.” Yet, the complaint fails to allege which position had “no substantive basis in the
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law or fact.” The complaint aﬂeges that certain advice Banister supposedly gave to
people constituted “false” opinions procured through “gross incompeténce.” Yet, again, |
the complaint Afails to allege what about the opinion rendered it false or what was “grossly
incompetent” about any opinion.

| Indeed, in both its allegations of incompetg:nce and the failure to conduct due
diligence, the complaint exhibits another deficiency — the complaint fails to state what
standard of care measured the degree of competence or diligence Banister was obligated
1o meet,

Comparably, the ﬁrst Qomplaint’allegesthat Banister filed a “frivolous” return for
a cliént. Yet, following the same pattern in its other allegations, fails to state which fact
about the feturn was frivolous. That portion of the complaint ﬁlust also be dismissed.

Finally, the first complaint alleges that Banister “knowingly counseled” a client to
“evade” a tax. Yet, the first complaiﬁt fails to allég‘e what about Banister’s advise
constituted evasion. This requirés that Banister know of a legal duty to pay a tax and
advise a client to ignore that duty. Once again, the complainant fails to even allege
Banister knew his client had any particular legal duty to pay a tax or that Banister advised
his client to disobey a known legal duty.

The allegation that public advocacy -could ever constitute private evasion is
particularly disturbing, and requires reversal of the ALJ decision. A practitioner’s duty ié
to aid a client in reducingv their tax liability when the law warrants. Merely stating that a
client is notA liable for a tax cannot, as a matter of law, constitute evasion, or every
accountant and tax lawyer in America can be disbarred for “counseling evasion.”

Instead, the complainant must show what about the advice was “evasion” and must also-

show that Banister knew the advice constituted evasion. Evasion, of course, requires
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knowledge of a knoyvn legal duty. No allegation, and no proof, ever supported anything
as absurd as alleging tax evasion from public comments about provisions of the code or
historical issues regarding the proper adoption of provisions of the code.

The amended complaint suffers even more egregious defects. The amended
complaint alleges that Banister “was required to ﬁle a return,” but fails to state any facts
that support such a contention, Indeed, the aménded complaint does not state a single
facf that could form the basis for such a legal claim.

Alleging mere legal conclusions fails to put Banister on notice of what facts he
will need to prepare his defense. The complainant must plead individual facts that give
rise to the claim. Instead, the complainant merely asserts a legal conclusion. As such,
the amended complaint fails to fairly inform Banister of What facts he will need to prove
or disprove to prepére a defense is inadequate under the rules. See 31 C.F.R. § 10.56.

With no factual c‘laims to defend against, the amended coniplaint gives the
respondent no opp;)rttmity to prepare a defense. The regulations clearly require such
facts to be plead into the complaint for that very purpose. Without such facts, the
respondent cannot prepare his defense. Indeed, without such facts, the amended
complaint fails to state a claim sufficient to proceed.

Thé rules specify what kind of supplemental charges éan be amended in a
complaint.

: 31 C.F.R. Sec. 10.59 Supplemental charges.

If it appears that the respondent in his answer, falsely and in bad

faith, denies a material allegation of fact in the complaint or states

that the respondent has no knowledge sufficient to form a belief, when he

in fact possesses such information, or if it appears that the respondent has

knowingly introduced false testimony during proceedings for his

disbarment or suspension, the Director of Practice may thereupon file

supplemental charges against the respondent. Such supplemental charges
may be tried with other charges in the case, provided the respondent is
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given due notice thereof and is afforded an opportunity to prepare a
defense thereto.

As the rules codify, the complainant can only amend a complaint and supplement
charges when those charges reflect c-onduct within the pending proceedings, such as false
testimony. This reflects the detailed. procedural provisions outlined in the regulations.-
These detailed procedural prerequisites protect a practitioner’s right to due process.

..As outlined earlier, these administrative procedures require a slow, step-by-step
evaluation before a complaint can ever be filed against a practitioner. This is why thése
sﬁpplemental charges provision is limited to conduct that takes place within the
proceedings.

In this case, the allegations in the amended complaint skipped every part of the
process. Therev is no record of any written referral by an IRS employee. There is no
written report from the director. There is no notice to the respondent of the alleged
problem. The Director gave the respondent no opportunity to either achieve compliance.
The Director never even provided a conference for the respondent to discuss the issue
with the Director. |

The amended complaint alleges no facts that permit this deviation from the
required process. In addition, this failure to follow the requiréd process violates
Banister’s right to due process, as guaranteed by the Fifth Amendment. The amended
complaint fails to state a claim upon which relief can be graﬁted and should be dismissed
due to the numerous deficiencies in the amended complaint and the secretive process that
brought it about.

The axnended complaint alleges Banister willfully faﬂed to file a return, but the

rules only proscribe the willful failure to make a return. Thus, the complaint alleges no
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facts that form the permiséii)le basis of any action. As is, the arhenciéd complaint alleges
mere legal conclusions, without stating a single fac’c, depriving Banister of any notice
sufficient to “fairly inform” him of the facts he needs to disprove in his defense. Finally,
the extraordinary deviation from the required procedure of the code — no notice of the
charges through employee and director written referrals and no opportum'ty to comply or |
conference on the charges — invalidates this complaint and violates Banister’s right to due
process. |

The regulations codify what allegations can constitute “the basis for the
proceeding.” See 31 C.F.R. § 10.56. The _alleged basis for this proceeding is Banister’s
alleged “disreputable” conduct pursuant to 31 C.F.R. § 10.51 (f). The amended
complaint alleges that Banister willfully failed to “file” a return and references the
criminal provisions related thereto. However, the regulation only references th¢ willful
failure to “make” a return, not “file” a return. See id. This distinction would make
sense, given that the rules only cover “reptésentation of clients.” See 31 C.F.R. § 10.00.

In contrast, the willful failure to file only constitutes disreputable conduct if
Banister had been convicted of the crime of willful failure to file. See 31 C.F.R. § 10.51
(a). Again, the amended complaint nowﬁere alleges that Banister has been criminally

~convicted of willful failure to file. Hence, the amended corﬁplaint fails to allege any fact
that can form the basis for this procveedjng,_ and should be dismissed.

The amended cofnplaint makes no allegation of misconduct within the
proceedings. The amended complaint gave Banister no notice of the allegations Eefore
commencing the complaint, nor provided Banister any opportunity to demonstrate
compliance or achieve compliance prior to the commencement of the amended

complaint. The amended complaint alleges facts outside the scope of Banister’s -
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representation of clients. Thus, Banister cannot Be disbarred for these allegations, as a
matter of law. Instead, the amended complaint must be dismissed.

2. Disbarment Violates Banisfer’s First Amendment Right to Free Speech.

As a seminal case cited even by the IRS, stétes, “[i]t is not the purpose of the law.
to penalize frank difference of opinion.” Spies v. United States, 317 U.S. 492, 496
(1943). Yet, that is exactly that the IRS seeks to ci'o here.

The rules also reflected the concern for frée speech and the right to petition the
government. Thus, the rules exempt political advocacy or conduct — such as public
Statements, political texts, or personal poiitical beliefs — from the jurisdiction of the
Director, as such comments cannot constitute “representation of a client before the IRS.”

In short, the Director cannot punish speech. To punish a practitioner for an
opinion held by the practitioner, the Director must show all 6f the following:

1) the statement was made on behalf of a client during the course of

representation of a client;

2) the statement was made on a tax return,

3) the statement contradicted Supreme Court law;

4) and the statement was not disclosed to the IRS, produced by gross

incompetence, or the client was never informed of any possible penalty.

Even then, further Constitutional constraints require that the speech invite
“imminent lawless action” as the ﬁfth element to.any such claimn. See Brandenburg v. |
Ohio, 395 U.S. 444 (.1 969).

A practitioner risks malpractice if he fails to raise an issue never difecﬂy litigated

by the Supreme Court. However, if the practitioner offends the political sensibilities of
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_ the IRS, the practitioner risks disbarment. The IRS wants to chill advocacy it dislikes -
and punish speech it disfavvors.

Banister contended by affirmative defense that the IRS is aﬁempting to
impermissibly‘punish him for exercising First Amendment rights to free speech. (See
Answer, 26(c); Answer to Am. Compl., ¥ 8(c).) Banister’s prior history — including his
agency record of achievement and leadership, his éoncems over agency procedures he’
believed unconstitutionél, and the agency’s sudden decision to demand Banister’s
resignation after he requested answers to ﬁis legitimate conéems — directly relate to the
issues of a First Amendment violation and impermissible retaliation defense Banister has
aright to pfesent.

The IRS itself does not hide its effort to prosecute Banister for purely political
belief_s and private conduct. The IRS, in itS own pleadingé and exhibits, references
Banister’s political publications to form the basis of their complaint. Indeed, the IRS
concedes it surveillancesv Banister’s talk radio appéarances and sté;rted its investigation of
Banister’s purely pﬁvate conduct based on these political appearances. (See
Complainant’s Opp’n to Resp’t Mot. for Discovery, p. 6.). The IRS offers no explanation
why one of their lead trial aftorneys monitors the political appearances of a former
Criminal Investigation Division speciél agent.

Furthermore,‘ the IRS, through its pre-hearing éxchange ﬁaterials, wishes to
introduce evidence of Banister’s political commentary in this proceeding to disbar him,
including his political texts, statements on talk radio and Sixty Minutes. Finally,
Banister’s prior employment with the IRS and status as a whjstléblower triggered this
proceeding to disbar him, and alleged the defense of impermissible retaliation for First

- Amendment speech in his Answer.
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Therefore, this case implicates powerful First Amendment rights and the public
interest in protecting political speech. Banister exercised this right to unimpeded political
speech, and is targeted for punishment because of the political context and implicatioﬁs
of fhat speech. The IRS’s attempt to bar Banister from practicing before the agency is
subject to spemal scrutiny by the judiciary. See Nebraska Press Ass’nv. Stuart, 427 U. S
539, 559 (1976). Banister’s private life and pohtlcal positions is wholly separate from his
mere advocacy before the agency, and his actions did not, as admitted by the Agency,
constitute incitement to imminent lawless action as radmitted by the Complainant. (See
Complainant’s Opp’n to Resp’t Mot. to Dismiss, p. 12.)

| Itis staﬁling that the Complainant would bﬁng an action of the instant type and
cite cases such as Brandenburg v. Ohio, 395 U.S. 444 (1969) to support their position.
There, the Court overturned its improvident holding of Whitney v. California, 274 U.S.
357 (1927), observing in the process that the Whitnéy court had simply permitted the
sanction of “ideas which the majority of the Court deemed unsound and dangerous.”
Brandenburg, 395 U.S. at 447. Overturning décades of already thoroughly discredited
law, the Court articulated a new standard for measuring protected speech and conduct,
striking down the Ohio Criminal Syndicalism Act on grounds it was facially
unconstitutional under the First Amendment:

“[The constitutional guarantees of free épeech and free press do not

permit a State to forbid or proscribe advocacy of the use of force or of law

violation except where such advocacy is directed to inciting or producing -

imminent lawless action and is likely to incite or produce such action.”
Id., at 447. |
The Act criminalized advocating, among others things, teaching the duty of violence to

aéqomplish political reform. Id., at 448. A KuKlux Klan leader was convicted under the
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Act for telling a crowci, in so many words, that they must kill “Niggers” and “J. ews” to
- restore the country. Id., at 445-47.
| Examining the instant case in Brandenburg’s light, Banister’s private life and
| political positioﬁslare_clearly protected speech. All the statefnents Qﬁ talk radio, on Sixty
Minuteé, and in the political writings provided by IRS in its pre-hearing exchange .
materials, constitute political speech. On behalf of his clients, Banister followed the
ﬁroper process and petitioned the Internal Revenue Service to settle certain tax matters on
behalf of his clients. He requested a'Collection Due Process Hearing, a hearing the IRS
never let happen. (See IRS Pre-Hearing Exchange Materiaié.)

Mbreover, other circuits also reject government attempts at abridging protected
speech, particularly in the tax area, as evidenced by a thoughtful Ninth Circuit decision.
In United States v. Dahlstrom, 713 F.2d 1423 (9th Cir. 1983), the defendants were
charged criminally under 26 U.S.C. § 7206 for promoting a tax avoidance trust scheme,
and were convicted in the district court below. Seé id. The appeals court, however,
overturned their convictions on First Amendment grounds:

Nothing in the record indicates that the advocacy practiced by these

defendants contemplated imminent lawless action. Not even national

security can justify criminalizing speech unless it fits within this narrow

category; certainly concern with protecting the public fisc, however

laudable, can justify no more.

Id. at 1428.
Significantly, the Brandenburg test does nbt rise and fall on the actions of listeners, but
on the actual conduct of the speaker:

Even if the defendants knew that a taxpayer who actually performed the

actions they advocated would be acting illegally, the first amendment

would require a further inquiry before a criminal penalty could be
enforced. With the exception of Durst, no defendant actually assisted in
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the preparation of any individual tax return. Rather, they merely
instructed an audience on how to set up a particular tax shelter.

Id. at 1428 (citing Brandenburg, 395 U.S. at 444).

If the First Amendment protected Dahlstrom and his co-defendants, who actually -
advocated aggressive participation in a tax avoidance scheme which they knew could
result in criminal and civil penalties against investors, then Banister’s mere advocacy of
several client asking nothing more than a hearing must be protectéd from go?ernment
| attempts to silence his political speech. As Justice Douglas eloquently expressed in his
Brandenburg concurrence:

The line between what is permissible and not subject to control and what

may be made impermissible and subject to regulation is the line between

ideas and overt acts. The example usually given by those who would

punish speech is the case of one who falsely shouts fire in a crowded

movie theatre. This is, however, a classic case where speech is brigaded

with action . . . . Apart from [those types of] rare instances speech is, I

think, immune from prosecution. Certainly there is no constitutional

line between advocacy of abstract ideas as in Yates and advocacy of

political action as in Scales. The quality of advocacy turns on the depth

of the conviction; and government has no power to invade that

sanctuary of belief and conscience.

Brandenburg, 395 U.S. at 456 (citations omitted) (emphasis added).

As the IRS admits, Banister’s actions did not intend to incite imminent lawless
action. (See Complainant’s Opp’n to Resp’t Mot. to Dismiss, p. 12.) Indeed, if the
government cannot proscribe the publication of books.that teach how to build bombs or
~ recommend racist death threats against whole groups of people, then Banister’s whistle-
blowing activities and his public reports on those activities must warrant protection from
Government intrusion. In the same vein, Banister’s mere petitioning the IRS for an

administrative tax collection hearing on behalf of a client with a tax problem must be

equally protected speech.
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Finally, public statements are not prohibited by the rules, nér could they be,
despite thé hﬁsjudgments of the ALJ. In onev of his many errors, the ALJ claimed thaf “a
practitioner may not advise clients to take a position which is frivolous” in any manner
involving the IRS. He later coﬁstrued this to mean that né citizen can “espouse views”
contrary to the pbsitions of the IRS. If they did, and they merely happened to be a
practitioner, then they could be disbarred from préctice and have their reputation braﬂded
with a badge of infamy. Needless to say, such rules would be unconstitutional. In fact,
the rules support no such interpretation as the one employed by the IRS and the ALJ.

While the IRS made liberal use of the word “frivolous” throughout its summary |
judgment motion as to all of the regulation violations alleged, the word “frivolous” is
used in only one section of the entire body of practice regulations; e. g., Section 10.34 -
regarding “frivolous” tax returns. The IRS never alleged that Banister ignored the safe
harbor provisions. Instead, the IRS and the ALJ fepeatedly referred to irrelevant caselaw,
caselaw that was not and could not be binding on the IRS. In one of his many decisions
evidencing incompetence of the law and the facts, the ALJ appeared unaware of this.
Indeed, the primary prosecutor with the Director of Pfactice appeared unaware of this.
As such, the first complé.int fails to fairly inform.Banister of what facts he will need to
prove or disprove to prepare a defense, requiring dismissal of the complaint. See 31
C.F.R. § 10.56.

Despite the multiple misinterpretations by the ALJ and rhisapplication of the law
by the IRS, these rules can be read to comport with Constitutional freedom of expression
and the right to petition one’s government. That Constitutionally correct construction of
the rules requires reversal of the ALJ recommendation and dismissal of the complaint

against Banister.



Despite IRS desires, the rules did not overturn the First Amendment. Protecting
the First Amendment requires overturning the ALJ judgment.

3. Proceeding With The Case Pending the Parallel Secret Criminal Grand Jury
Violated Banister’s Right Against Self-Incrimination and Right to Due
Process.

No administrative agency can constitutionélly force a person to choose between
self-incrimination -and serious economic reprisal. Baxter v. Palmigiano, 425 U.S. 308
(1976). Yet, that is what the' Administrative Law Judge and the IRS did in this case. The
IRS admitted they were conducting a criminal investigation of Banister from before the
commencement and throughout these proceedings. The IRS hid this fact until the eve of
disposition. The IRS conceded they conducted secret conferences with the Department
of Justice concerning this matter. The IRS also admitted their policy was to initiate these
proceedings a‘? the will of the criminal arm of the government. The IRS écknowledged an
open grand jury contemplating indicting Banister for the same conduct it alleged in this
case. (See Complainant’s Mot. for Summ. J., p. 46.) Such a Faustian bargain — lose youf.
right against compelled, coerced speech or suffer a badge of infémy stripping you of your
license — required abatement of the proceeding. The judge’s deniél thereof was reversible
error.

Indeed, an agency may only compel testimoﬁy from an accused if the agency
immunizes the declarant from subsequent criminal prosecutibn. See id. In this regard,
parallel pfoceedings are “unobjectionable’; only so long as there is no “substantial
prejudice to the rights of the parties involved.” SEC v. Dresser Industries, Inc., 628 F.2d

1368 (D.C.App. 1980). The Dresser Court also outlined under what circumstances civil

proceedings must be stayed:



Other than where there is specific evidence of agency bad faith or

malicious government tactics, the strongest case for deferring civil

proceedings until after completion of criminal proceedings is where a

party under indictment for a serious offense is required to defend a

civil or administrative action involving the same matter. The

noncriminal proceeding, if not deferred, might undermine the party’s Fifth

Amendment privilege against self-incrimination, expand the rights of

criminal discovery beyond the limits of Federal Rule of Criminal

Procedure 16(b), expose the basis of the defense to the prosecution in

advance of criminal trial, or otherwise prejudice the case.

Dresser, at 1376 (emphasis added).

This disbarment action is exactly the “strongest case for deferring civil
proceedings” identified in Dresser. Id. Forcing Banister to testify endangers Banister’s
Fifth Amendment rights, allowing the impermissible realization of all the evils
~ anticipated by the Dresser Court — undermining Banister’s right not to speak, expanding
the scope of criminal discovery beyond the rules of criminal procedure, exposing the
basis of Banister’s possible defense to the prosecution in a preview of a potential criminal
trial, and otherwise prejudicing Banister’s defense.

Compounding matters, the IRS never informed Banister of the pending criminal
ihvestigation and grand jury proceeding, although the IRS admits it knew about both and
even conferred with criminal invesﬁgators in February of 2001, well before the IRS filed
the complaint which commenced this action. Banister’s pre-hearing exchange materials
and contemplated hearing testimony also evidence the sort of agency bad faith and
malicious tactics decried in Dresser.

The agency ambushed Banister by refusing to answer his questions regarding the
scope and nature of federal income taxation during his IRS tenure as a special agent,

coercing his resignation in lieu of the required response, and then waiting until after he

made public statements it disliked to convene a concurrent criminal investigation, grand
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jury proceeding, and disbarment action. The agency’s repeated violation 6f its own
regulations in dealings with Banister reflects a deviation from the norm only explained by
IRS bad faith. Finally, if knowledge of criminal investigations and gra_ﬁd jury
proceedings during this civil action’s pendency, surveillancing Banister’s political
conversations and public appearances, and demanding summary disbarment without
either a heéring or discovery aren’t “malicious” taétics, it is difficult to imagine whaf
woﬁld be.

The “summons” law cited by‘ IRS further supports Banister’s argument for
dismissal or, in the alternative, abatement of this disbarment action. The IRS cites
Donaldson v. United States, 400 U.S. 517, 534 (1971), which discusses the many
problems of IRS concurrent civil and criminal investigations. Donaldson involved a civil

administrative summons issued by IRS — a much less intrusive device than economic
reprisal via disbanneht; still, the court held that a summons could not be enforced if the
IRS had referred the target’s case to the Department of Justice for criminal prosecution.

Unlike Dornaldson, the IRS is not merely “consideriﬁg’? a criminal referral
regarding Banister; instead the IRS has actually made a criminal referral and presumably
received authority frbm the Department of Justice to prosecute Banister criminally. With
this background, the IRS now seeks sumr_nary-disbarmenf and apparently hopes to force
Banister to choose between forfeiting his livelihood and asserting his Fifth Amendment
right against self-incrimination, in direct violation of Donaldson and its progeny. In fact,
the Fifth Circuit condemned the V;ery IRS practices involved hgre as the kind of “sneaky,
déliberate deception” Warranting the harshest sanctions against the agency. As the court

held in United States v. Tweel, 550 F.2d 297 (5" Cir. 1977): -
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‘Silence can dnly be equated with fraud where there is a legel or moral

duty to speak or where an inquiry left unanswered would be intentionally

misleading.” . .. From the facts we find that the agent’s failure to apprise

the appellant of the obvious criminal nature of this investigation was a

sneaky deliberate deception by the agent under the above standard and a

flagrant disregard for the appellant’s rights.

Id.»(c‘iting United States v. Prudden, 424 F.2d 1021, 1032 (5" Cir. 1970)
(empha51s added).

Here, the IRS stood s11ent from February 0f 2001 until the eve of the hearing,
never disclosing to Banister the private conferencing of the IRS agents with criminal
investigators. Indeed, shockingly, the IRS admits they followed the guidance of the
criminal 1nvest1gato1s in initiating this proceeding. (See IRS’ Motlon for Summary
Jjudgment, p. 46.) The IRS’s silence under such circumstances works a fraud 'againet
Banister, and as Tweel held, such unconscionable conduct reflects a “flagrant disregard”
for Banister’s rights, neceséitating dismissal.

If parallel criminal preceedings with identical civil proceedings do not‘endanger
Banister’s Fifth Amendment rights, then the Fifth Amendment holds little value against
government coercion. When the state hides this fact from Banister and secretly
conferences with the prosecutor, then the Fifth Amendment mandates abatement.

The ALJ’s failure to abate the case abated justice. Hence, the disbarment must be
discarded and the pfoceeding dismissed, if the Fifth Arnendment protections mean
anything.

4. The Complete Denial of Discovery Violated Banisters®’ Right to Due Process.

The courts long ago acknowledged that the complete denial of discovery in an

administrative adjudication would likely be a due process violation. Yet, that is exactly

what happened here in this already extraordinary proceeding. See Order of Respondent;s
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Motion for Discovery; See Order Regarding Admissible Evidence at Sanction Phase of
" Proceeding, December 26, 2003; See also Order Regarding Complainant's Motion in
Limine, November 21, 2003. In short order, the court denied the respondent any
opportunity to substantiate his defense.

indeed, the evidence excluded from discovery exculpated Banister, documenting
all of the following: that his arguments had a reasonable chance of success on the merits,
as other IRS officials routinely approved‘ it in reducing the tax liability of taxpayers; that
he informed the IRS officials his client was not claiming the incomé tax was
unconstitutional as his reason for requesting a collection due process hearing; and that
- there was no evidence Banister had any legal duty to file any return given the facts of his
situation. See Respondem"s Proffer of Offer of Proof, November 25, 2003.

Moreover, the evidence would have also shown that the real motivations for
prosecuting Banister were purely retaliatory for Banister’s political speech, with the
choice to prosecute him resulting from Banister’s appearance on Sixty Minutes, where
Banister aired allegations of fraud he uncovered during his tenure with his former agency.
See Respondent’s Proffer of Offer of Proof, November 25, 2003.

Finally, discovery could have yielded exculpatory evidence that the IRS was
estopped by principles of equity from prosecuting Banister when they routinely refused to
answer citizen questiohs- on these issues, including Banister’s sincere questioné.

- Thus, the denial of discovery was as prejudi-cial as it could be.

5. Excluding Banister’s Testimony Violated Banister’s Right to Due Process
and Violated the Rules. '

The court denied Banister any right to testify as to the diligence of his research,
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the community standard under which he operated, his knowledge of beneficial
- arrangements for taxpayers advancing the m@ment he allegedly made, or even as to his
history of never willfully violating any federal law. See Order of Réspondent 's Motion
for Discovery, See Order Regarding Admissible Evidence at Sanction Phase of
Proceeding, December 26, 2003; See also Order Regarding Complainant’s Motion in
Limine, November 21, 2003. The court also deniéd Banister the right to call a host of
witnesses, including the taxpayers allegedly injured by Bahjster’s advice or a host of
witnesses wﬁo had exculpatory and mitigating information. See id. The court erred in all
of its holdings.
The rules and the law expressly mandate:
A party is entitled to present his case or defense by oral or documentary |

evidence, to submit rebuttal evidence, and to conduct such cross-examination
as may be required for a full and true disclosure of the facts.

5U.S.C. § 556.

This ALJ, and the IRS, were obsessed with preventing just that — a full and true
disclosure of the facts. The facts would have shown that Banister’s arguments had a
reaéonable chance of success on the merits for any taxpayer who advanced the argument;
that other IRS officials routinely approved Banister’s arguments in reducing the tax
liability of taxpayers; that Banister informed the IRS officials his client was not claiming
the income tax was unconstitutional as his reason for requesting a collection due process
hearing; and that there was no evidence Banister had any legal duty to file any return
given the facts of his situation; that the IRS was estopped by principles of equity from
prosecuting Banister when they routinely refused to answer citizen questions on these
issues, including Banister’s sincere questions; and that the real motivations for

prosecuting Banister were purely retaliatory for Banister’s political speech, with the
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choice to prosecute him resulting frém Banister’s appearance on Sixty Minutes, where
Baﬁster aired allegations of fraud he uncovered during his tenure with his former agenéy
See Respondent’s Proffer of Offer of Proof, November 25, 2003.

" As one illustration, the court’s gagging of Banister denied Banister the
opportunity to present a reliance defense. This particular case emphasizes the felevaﬁce
of any reliance defense, including reliance on the conduct of another profeésional or the
agency involved.

Here, Banister alleged that the IRS was estopped from proceeding against him by
virtue of IRS acts of omission a;tld commission. In addition to supporting his estdppel
defense, though, reliance on agency conduct also negates the requisite willfulness
element of the offenses charged. Willfulness is a required element for any violation of a
Treasury Circular 230 regulation where the IRS fails to afford the target an opportunity to
comply, and this reqﬁired element is a disputed material fact which precludes summary
disbarment on any of the claims submitted by IRS.

Repeatedly, courts hold that evidence relating to a‘defendant’s reliance upon
representatiqr_ls made by government officials, whether judgés or executive department
officers and agents, are a defense ;co goverﬁniént sanctions. In Moser v. United States,
341 U.S. 41 (1951), the Court held that reliance on government conduct could constitute
a defense to dctions taken by the government. These decisions are buttressed by others
such as Raley v. Ohio, 360 U.S. 423 (1959), Cox v. Louisiana, 379 U.S. 559 (1965), |
United States v. Laub, 385 U.S. 475 (1967), and United States v. Penn. Industrial
Chemical Corp., 411 U.S. 655 (1973).

The 9th Circuit, which is the circuit in which Banister resides, and would be the .

appellate court reviewing any agency action in this matter, also addressed this issue. In
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reliance on gdvernment officials. Again, in State v. Ragland, 233 A.2d 698 (1967), the
court vacated a conviction of a defendant for driving without a license based merely upon
the fact that he drove'a car on the occasion at the request of police officers.

Merely misinterpreting government forms or government prabtices properly
provides a reliance defense to government sanctiqn. In Connelly v. State, 351 S.E.2d 702
| (1987), a defendant who had relied upon a misleading driver's license form had his
conviction for driving offenses reversed. In State v. Chiles, 569 So.2d 45 (La.App. 4 Cir.
1990), a pawn shop owner who relied upon the practices of the local sheriff's office had
her conviction for failure to abide by record keéping laws reversed.

Finally, silence alone provv.ides a reliance defense wheneﬂfer such silence would
mislead another intentionally or wherever there is either a legal or moral duty to speak.
As the court held in United States v. Tweel, 550 F.2d 297 (5th Cir. 1977): |

| ‘Silence can only be equated with fraud where there is a legal or moral

duty to speak or where an inquiry left unanswered would be intentionally

misleading” . . . From the facts we find that the agent’s failure to apprise

the appellant of the obvious criminal nature of this investigation was a

sneaky deliberate deception by the agent under the above standard and a

flagrant disregard for the appellant’s rights.

Id. (citing Uﬁited Stdres V. -Prudden, 424 F.2d 1021, 1032 (5™ Cir. 1970).

Hence, whénever an unanswered inquiry would intentionally mislead someone,
the law and morality impose a duty to answer. The IRS never corrected any statement
Banister made, never answéred any questions Banister asked, and never afforded Banister
a simple opportunity to achieve compliance. Consequently, the IRS is estopped from
proceeding against Banister on the very issues it refused to provide answérs o1

In sum, Banister and his client followed the rules, petitioned an administrative

body for redress, and honestly expressed their beliefs. And, again, the IRS answer was a
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coincidentally involves a férmer high-profile IRS whistleblower. The court held that a
respondent, never afforded any opportunity for discovery and subject to a pending
parallel criminal proceeding,v must “produce evidence” to negate factual claims thét
constitute the elements of the government’s case even when the IRS never alleged any
such facts in their complaints. - See Order on Com];la,inam‘ 's Motion For Summary
Judgment, Novembef 24, 2003.

| At the outset, the limited authority delegated to the IRS to disbar practitioners for
their practice before the IRS requires 'noticé of the allegations, an opportunity to comply,
and a full hearing before stripping a practitiongr of their economic livelihood. By
necessary implication, such rules never authorize, nor could the rules authorize, summary
j_udgment in a contested case without violating fundamental Fifth Amendment»Due
Process rights.

It is well settled that a respondent in an IRS disbarment proceeding is entitled to
all requisites of elefnentary faimess, due notice, and opportunity to be heard. See
Washburn v. Shapiro, 409 F. Supp 3 (S.D.Fla. 1976). A hearing necessarily entails the
opportunity to confront evidence, present arguments, and be represented by counsel -
Before an independent administratiye law judge. As the statute codifies:

A party is entitled to present his case or defense by oral or documentary
evidence, to submit rebuttal evidence, and to conduct such cross-examination
as may be required for a full and true disclosure of the facts.
5U.S.C. § 556.
The court’s order for summary judgment violated the regulations and the

“elementary” requirements of Fifth Amendment due process mandated by the courts, and '

should therefore be denied
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various safe harbor acts. (See Answer, 99 8, 10-11.) Furthermore, the IRS references just
one single instance of filing one return on behalf of one client in its complaint against
Banister. And Banister, following the rules, disclosed the details of the basis for the
taxpayer’s position to the IRS and disclosed the risk of penalty to his clients. See id.
Moreover, the IRS points to no evidence that.the so-called “861” refurn position was
“patently improper,” or that Banister’s conduct in this regard was “willful, reckless, or a
result of gross incompetencé.” 31 C.F.R. § 10.34(a)(4)(ii)(b).

Notably for this case, the IRS did not even issue a formal opinion on-the “861”
position until well over a year after Banister allegedly prepared the return in question.
See IRS Notice 2001-40, Issued: June 6, 2001. But in an apparent attempt to fesolve the
question on summary judgment whether Banister’s return position was “frivolous”
(defined as “patently improper,” whatever that means), “reckless, or a result of gross
incompetence,’.’ fhe fRS contends that Banister could have relied on three U.S. Tax Court
opinions: Aiello v. CIR, T.C. Memo. 1995-40; Solomon v. CIR, T.C. Memo. 1993-509;
and Crain v. CIR, 737 F.2d 1417 (5™ Cir. 1984).

In Aiello, the argument made by the prb se petitioner was “unclear” and appeared
to involve a broad claim that no remuneration for labor could be taxed. Id. The |
Thompson return took no such position. In Solomdn,n another pro se litigant claimed
citizens of Illinois were not citizens of the United States. Again, the Thompson return
took no such position. Finally, the IRS citation to Crain is particularly curious, where
Crain, another pro se litigant, claimed he wasn’t subject to the jurisdiction of “the state”
and failed to support a single assertion of his claim. See Crainv. CIR, 737 F.2d at 1417.

In each of these cases, the arguments by the pro se litigants were either unclear or

37



unsupported — hardly the sort of cases responsible tax practitioners even read, much less
follow.

Banister followed the IRS’ recommended procedures in the return preparation,
and the taxpayer involved filed his return with a detailed explanation of the return’s
position. No undisputed evidence supports a finding that the return Banister prepared
was willfully or recklessly frivolous, or the produét of gross incompetence.

Moreover, the tax code is anything but clea’f; it is, as the IRS’s own prior
Commissioner acknowledged, “unintelligible,” an “inexplicable maze,” and “eciﬁally
mysterious” to its own specially trained émployees. ’See Former IRS Commissioner
Shirley Peterson, Address at Southern Methodist University, April 14, 1993.

Finally with resi)ect to the original complaint, the IRS alleged broadly that
Banister engaged in disrepu’téble conduct within the méaﬁng of 31 C.F.R. § 10.51. |
Those allegations, however, aré all grounded Iooseiy on the allegations and minimal
supporting facts IRS asserted regarding alleged violations of 31 C.F.R. §§ 10.22 and
10.34. And again, whether Banister “kﬁowingly counseled” anyoﬁe “of an illegal plan to
evad;e Federal taxes or the payment thereof” is a material fact in dispute, because
Banister’s state of mjhd cannot be known at this stage in the litigation. (See Compl., §
IV.B)

Similarly, the IRS misapplies the standards for a tax court petition with a sirﬁple
request for an administrative hearing before an executive agency enforcing income tax
collection. |

Under 26 U.S.C § 7122, the IRS has the administrative authority fo reduce the
amount of a tax liability if the taxpayer presenté evidence regarding doubt as to liability

for the tax demanded by IRS. The statute does not limit those “doubt as to liability”
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arguments to cburt-approved assertions. In addition, the IRS’s own manual makes clear
that any opinion issued by any court other than the Supreme Court are not binding on the
. IRS. See IRM §4.10.7.2.9.8. |

| Finally, the very court opinions cited by the IRS show that those céurts

| recorﬁmended taking political issues like the alleged fraudulent ratification of the
Sixteenth Amendment to the executive branch of govemment, contrary to the IRS’s
claims on brief that numerous Court decisions “rejected” the factual claims and
arguments concerning possible fraud in the Sixteenth Amendment ratification process.

In fact, the only courts to address the issue of 16™ Amendment ratification fraud
raised by historians and others, including Banister, have held that issue to be a political
qﬁestion outside the jurisdiction of the courts and Best addressed by other forums — such
as the executive branch allegedly issuing the fraudulent ratification doqument in 1913.

- As the 9™ Circuit opined on this important subject:

Stahl’s claim that ratification of the sixteenth-amendment was fraudulently

certified constitutes a political question because we could not undertake

independent resolution of this issue without expressing lack of respect due
coordinate branches of government.
United States v. Smhz, 792 F.2d 1438, 1440 (9™ Cir. 1986).

Thus, the question of fraudulent ratification, which the Supremé Court has never
addressed, was a “nonjusticiable, political question” whereby the Constitution itself
reveals a “textually demoﬁstrable” decision to commit the issue “to a coordinate political
branch.” Stahl, 79:2 F.2d at 1440. By so holding, the courts implicitly directed those
concerned Wifh this significant constitutfonal issue to seek review and remedy with

coordinate political branches of government. This implicit advisement was made explicit

by the very case cited by the IRS, Miller v. United States, 868 F.2d 236 (7™ Cir. 1988).
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There, the court advised those concerned with the issue to “take théir objections” to “a
more appropriate forum” of which there were “many available.” As this record stands,
once the IRS apbprised Banister in writing that the IRS considered itself an inappropriate
forum for resolving this issue — even though the IRS is the agéncy of the very executiye ‘
branch the courts held were the only ones who could constitutionally address the issue —
the IRS has provided no evidence that Banister ever raised the issue in any representation
ofa taXpayer again — and there is none.

The IRS’s treatment of Sixteenth Amendment ratification case law exemplifies
tﬁe difficult circumstances practitioners face in representing takpayers before the IRS.
By the direct suggestion of fhe courts in thé very case cited by the IRS, taxpayers with -
questions like ratification would be “well advised” to “take their objections” to a “more
appropriate foram.” Id. And that is precisely what the IRS alleged Banister did — exactly
what the courts recommended. Importantly, the IRS admits Banister’s political speech
never incited anyone to imminent lawless conduct, (see Complainant’s Opp’n to Resp’t
Mot. to Dismiss, p. 12), and Banister directed these important political concerns to the
very goirernment forums recommended by court opinions the IRS now cites as authority
ageﬁnst Banister.

And what forum would be more appropriate than the executive branch of
government that issued the ratification proclamation, and what agency within that branch
more appropriate than the agency charged with conducting collection due process tax
hearings? Yet, the IRS’s position is that when taxpayers heed the direct admonition of
federalvcouﬂs and bring such matters to the agency’s attention, the IRS is justified in
seeking disbarment against any taxpayer representati\;e who dared utter these

“dangerous” words — all in spite of the fact that the IRS never informed the practitioner
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that statutory collection hearings were an inappropriate forum to address or adjudicate the
issue.

Turning to the IRS’s aménded complaint, the IRS alleged that Banister violated
31 C.F.R. § 10.51(f) by failing to file allegedly requireci tax returns, and attached thereto
were certain IRS transcripts. Although that regulation requires a specific finding of
“willfulness,” the IRS failed to plead that necesséry element iﬁ its amended complaint.
By agency édmission, this element requires the IRS to prove that Banister is guilty of a
“voluntary, intentional violation of a known legal duty.” (See Complainant’s Mot. for
Sum. Judgment, p. 32.) The Suﬁrenﬁe Court has recently clarified the re;luired elements
of such“‘willﬁﬂness.” |

Willfulnéss, as construed by our prior decisions in criminal tax cases,

requires the Government to prove that the law imposed a duty on the

defendant, that the defendant knew of this duty, and that he voluntarily

and intentionally violated that duty.

United States v. Cheek, 498 U.S. 192, 201 (1991).

Thus there are three separate elements to the offense: (1) the law imposed a duty
on Banister to file a return for the years in question; (2) Banister knew fhat the law
imposed a duty on him to file a return for the years in question; and (3) Banister
voluntarily and intentionally violated his duty to file such return.! An element of the
offense of willfulness is “awareness” of tﬁe duty at issue, and the Government cannot

prove that element if the defendant had any good faith belief that he owed no such duty.

See id. Moreover, the trier of fact must be “free to consider ahy admissible evidence

: Of note, the IRS failed to allege required elements two and three along with

supporting facts in its amended complaint, one of the grounds upon which Banister
moved for dismissal. Banister again requests dismissal of the complaint for failure to
state a claim upon which relief can be granted. Axiomatic rules of civil and criminal
procedure, applicable in all courts, require that a complainant plead all necessary
elements or suffer dismissal of the claim, count, or cause of action.
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from any source” to determine the credibility and sincerity of Banister’s beliefs. Id. at
- 203. |

Explicating this issue further in overturning the defendant’s cenviction of willful
failure to file tax returns, the Court instructed that:

[1]f Cheek asserted that he truly believed that the Internal Revenue Code
did not purport to treat wages as income, and the jury believed him, the
Government would not have carried its burden to prove willfulness,
however unreasonable a court might deem such a belief. Of course, in
deciding whether to credit Cheek’s good-faith belief claim, the jury would
be free to consider any admissible evidence from any source. We thus
disagree with the Court of Appeals’ requirement that a claimed good-faith
belief must be objectively reasonable if it is to be considered as possibly
negating the Government’s evidence purporting to show a defendant’s
awareness of the legal duty at issue. Knowledge and belief are
characteristically questions for the factfinder, in this case the jury.
Cha:ractenzmg a particular belief as not objectively reasonable transforms
the inquiry into a legal one and would prevent the jury from considering
it...it is not contrary to common sense, let alone impossible, for a
defendant to be ignorant of his duty based on an irrational belief that he
has no duty.

Id. at 203,
Significantly, the Court held that eveﬁ if the defendant’s belief was “irrational,” it would
defeat the Government’s claim as long as the belief was sincerely held. In this case, the
IRS never alleged Banister knew of any duty to file tax returns, much less willfully
disregarded it. Te the contrary, the sparse evidence that does exist on this record reflects
Banister’s good faith belief regarding the scope and nature of federal income taxation.
The IRS adduced no evidence that Banister’s financial condition required him to
file areturn. The burden of proof remains with the IRS, not Baﬁister. See 5U.S.C. §
556. Thus, the court erred in holding that Banister, not the IRS, had the burden of proqf
on whether his income could trigger a duty to file a return. See Decision of the

Adhzz'nz'slmtive Law Judge, December 29, 2003, at 2.
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The IRS interprets its’ scope of authority as investing the agency with an
inquisitorial power over anyone Who was ever a “practitioner” before the IRS even when
the practitioner’s conduct falls outside the scope of the rules. The only “disreputable”
conduct under such circumstances is the conduct of the IRS.

The ALJ could not issue judgment on behalf of the IRS without ignoring the rules
governing disciplinary procedures, the administrafive practice rules, the rules for
summary judgment, and the rules allocating the burden of proof. Instead, the ALJ
required Banister to nroduce evidence on claims the government had the burden on and
issued judgmen’g without discovery and without a hearing.

The multiple and manifest errors of law in the orders of t‘he‘ALJ re(juire reversal
and dismissal of the entire proceeding.

9. Excluding the Exculpatory Testimony of All of Banisfer’s Witnesses Violated

Banister’s Right to Due Process and Violated the Rules.

The court excluded the testimony of Ken Canfield, the IRS Revenue Agent who
began this investigation of Banister and was the only person to make any written referral
against Banister. See Order of Respondent’s Motion for Di&covery;»See Order Regarding
Admissible Evidence at Sanction Phase of Pijoceeding, :December 26, 2003; See also
Order Regarding Complafnant 's Motion in Limine, November 21, 2003.

Canfield’s testimony was explosive. Canfield’s testimony would haye exposed

 the impermissible and illicit motivations of the agency, as well as exculpatory and
~ mitigating information concerning Banister’s conduct. See Respondent’s Proffer of Offer
of Proof, November 25, 2003.

Canfield initiated his investigation of Banister before Banister ever even spoke to

Canfield concerning his client. See id. In fact, Canfield surveilled Banister’s p’olitic‘al
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appearances and decided to start an investigation info Banister based on those political
appearances. See id. Canﬁeld even spoke with the office of the IRS Director of Practice
about investigating Banister for aileged “disreputable” practice based on Banister’s
political speech on talk radio. ‘See id. Canfield then surreptiously contacted Banister’s
former employment supervisors, supefvisors whorinformed Canfield that Banister was
entirely honorable in his work record. See zd Canfield even knew that Banister was not
challenging the constitutionality of the tax system in his representation of clients before
the IRS, but merely informing the IRS of his own political 6pinions and his client’s
political opiniouns, ias recommended by the IRS own Offer in COmpronﬁse publicétion.
See id. -

Canfield also had no knowledge of what Banister would actually argue on behalf
of any taxpayer, because Canfield never gave any Banister cli'ent a hearing. See id.
Further, Canfield will admit that he knew the IRS granted taxpayers reduced tax
liabilities based on these same arguments. See id. Canﬁeld knew that Banister knew this.
See id. Finally, Canfield’s testimony would have reve;aled that Canfield never notified
ABanister he was conduéting a private investigation into Banister and attempting to entrap
Banister after the fact. See id. His own written notes and Wﬁtten referral would have
further corroborated and confirmed fnany of these details. See id.

The court excluded the testimony of Priscilia Qusley, another IRS employee, with
significant information relevant to the Banister’s state of mind, the lack of frivolity in
Banister’s arguments, and the tax benefits to clients whose répresentatives advocated the
arguments Banister did. See Order of Respondent’s Motion for Discovery; See Order
Regarding Admissible Evidence at Sanction Phase of Proceeding, December 26, 2003; -

See also Order Regarding Complainant’s Motion in Limine, November 21, 2003.
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Ousley would have testified that the IRS reduced the tax debts of taxpayers who
made identical argument to the ones Banister allegedly made around the time Banister
made them involving similar taxpayers to Banister’s clients. See Respondent s Proffer of
Offer of Proof, November 25,2003.  Thus, her testimony would have proven that any
taxpayer allegedly aided by Banister in their tax return would have had a reasonable
probability of success in redu_cing their tax liability due to the complicated and complex
issue of the interpretation of the internal tax code given the unique facts of that taxpayer.

The court excluded the testimony of Sue Erwin, the IRS appeals officer involved
the case, and Patrick McDonough, the individual who signed the written complaint
against Banister. See Order of Respondent’s Motion for Discovery; See Order Regarding
Admissible Evidence at Sanction Phése of Proceeding, December 26, 2003; See;\.lso
Order Regdrding Complainant’s Motion in Limine, November 21, 2003.

These two witnesses all know one critical fact - that the IRS chose to bring this
complaint against Banister after he appeared on Sixty Minutes II. See Respondent’s -
Proffer of Offer of Proof, November 25,2003. In fact, their own written notes would
have rcﬂected that Sue Erwin, an IRS employee, contacted the Director’s office and
inform them that her contacts told her Banister would be appearing on Sixty Minutes IT.
See id. The private notes also reflected that the Director of Practice'dec’ided to bring
charges if and after Banister appeared on the show. See id. McDonough would also
testify that the Directo.r of Practice knew about a pending criminal investigation into |
Banister, a criminal investigation the Director kept hidden from Banister dﬁﬁng the entire
proceeding until the Director ambushed Banister on the eve of tﬁe hearing. See id.

The éourt excluded the testimony of Commissioner Rossotti. See Order of

Respondent’s Motion for Discovery, See Order Regarding Admissible Evidence at _
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Sanction Phase of Proceeding, December 26, 2003; See also Order Regarding
Complainant’s Motion in Limine, November 21, 2003. Rossotti’s testimony validated
Banister’s equity and intent defenses. Rossotti would have testified that Banister had
asked the IRS questions concerning identical issues and Rossotti Would have testified that
the IRS never refuted any of Banister’s interpreta‘;ions. See Respondent’s Proffer of Offer
of Proof, November 25, 2003.
The court even prohibited the taxpayers allegedly injured by Banister from
testifying. See Order Regarding Admissible Evidence at Sanction Phase of Proceeding,
December 26, 2003; See also Order Rega.ra’iﬁg Complainant’s Motion in Limine,
November 21, A2003.
Again, the law makes clear that Banister enjoyed a right to introduce such
evidence as part of presenting his case. As the statute codifies:
A party is entitled to présent his case or defense by oral or documentary
evidence, to submit rebuttal evidence, and to conduct such cross-examination
as may be required for a full and true disclosure of the facts.
-5 U.S.C. § 556.

The denial of so much exculpatory evidence — démonst'rating convincingly mat
Banister’s conduct was not a willful disregard of the rules, but réthgr an honest attempt to
'comrnunicate the truth as he knew it — requires reversal of the recommendation of |
disbarment and dismissal of the enﬁre probeeding.

10. Relying on Testimony From an IRS Official Who Perjured Himself and Who

Lacked Authority to Testify Violated Banister’s Right to Due Process and

- Violated the Rules. :

The only person who ever swore any oath testifying against Banister — every other

government official, including the people who made the original allegations against
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- Banister, fled from the case and failed to file a single sworn affidavit in the case or ex}er
testify under oath — committed perjury in this case.

The only pefson testifying against Banis_ter was David Finz, an unknown official |
claiming to represent the Director of Practice. Finz swore under oath that the Director of
Practice gave him “express authority” in cases ﬁlyolving allegations of disreputable
conduct “to determine the appropriate penalty to seek at hearings” involving such cases. -
See Aﬁ‘idc_zvit bf David M. Finz, Paragraph 4. As it turns out, Finz lied.

At the sanction phase of the hearing, Finz admitted he had no express written
authority at all from the Director of Practice. See Transcript of Sanction Hearing, pp. 27-
30. He further admitted that the Director, not he, “determined the appropriate penalty” to
seek. See id. |

Rather than coﬁfront this evident perjury, the Administrative Law judge ignored
all the admissions on cross-examination. See Decision of the Administrative Law Judge,
December 29, 2003. Instead, the Administrative Law Judge relied on Finz’ claims
concerning the rﬁotives of the agency and intentions of the agency when Finz had no
_legal authority to speak to either. See Decision of the Administrative Law Judge,
December 29, 2003. |

The cross-examination below exposes Finz’ lies. See Transcript of Sanction

Hearing, pp. 27-30.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. BARNES:
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Q °° Mr. Finz, do you have express authority to
dete:mine the penalty that should be issued against
Mr. Banister?

- A No, I don’t have the authority to determine
penalty; I have the authority to recommend to counsel
what penalty to seek. The determination of penalty’s
made by the Administrativé Law Judge.

0 But, so you do have the -- in tetms of the
director’s office,,you do have the authority to

determine what penalty should be socught in this

proceeding?
A In consultation with the director.
Q Well, do you have the authority or do you

.not have the authority?

A I make the fecommendation and the director
concurred with it.

Q  Oh, so, well, my question is, is it the
director who has the authority, or doiyou have the
authority?

A No, the director has the authority under the
requlations.

0 Okay --

A I can make a recommendation to the director

as to what penalty I've determined is appropriate for
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us to'seek, and then if the director does not concur

with that, then the director has the final say.

Q  So in fact the director has the authority,
not you?

A That's corredt -

Later, Finz admitted he had no written authority to seék any penalty, further
confirming his materially misleading and false statement under oath in his earlier
affidavit in the case. As Fiﬁz admitted under cross-examination, See Transcript of
Sanction Hearing, pp. 27-30; |

0 Does the director in writing give you the
aut’hoz}:ity to determine or recomeﬁd the appropriate
penalty to be sought in disciplinary proceedings?

A No, I don’ t have anything in writing to show
you, 1if that’s what you mean.

The pattern of conduct by the only IRS official willing, or permitted, to testify in
this proceeding embodies all the flaws in this Kafkaesque process. The only real fraud |
reméiﬁs where it begén when Banister left the IRS after diécovering governmental fraud
in that agency — with the IRS.

CONCLUSION

No notice, no discovery, no depositions, no testimony, and no hearing. Political
surveillance, parallel secret criminal proceedings, conferencing with criminal
prosecutors, illicit secret audits, and retaliation against a whistleblower. If this is

administrative justice, the Secretary might as well take the word “justice” out of it.
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prosecutors, illicit secret audits, and retaliation against a WhiStleblower. If this is
administrative justice, the Secretary might as well take the word *“justice” out of it.

This case embodies all that the rules, statutes, and Consfitutional fproscriptions
intended to prevent. The ALJ summarily adjudicated Banister guilty and then diSbarre'a
the former IRS WhiStlEbIOWBr, without answering the questioﬁs Banister asked of them,
Witho_ut affording him an opportﬁnity to achief.ve cémpliance with the rules prior to

initiating the pr'oceeding, without alleging the requisite facts that constitute the offcnsé,

- without informing him he was under a parallel criminal investigation, without affording

him any discovery, without permitting him to even “argue” as to the merits of the ‘
statements IRS seeks disbarment for, and without even affording him meaningful notice
or a meaningful hearing. Any one of these circumstances demands reversal; their

aggregation necessitates dismissal of this entire proceeding.

Respectfully submitted this 23rd day of January, 2004,

THE LAW OFFICES OF ROBERT G. BERNHOFT, §.C.
Attorneys for the Respondent, Joseph R. Banister

By:

Robert E Bames .-
. Wisconsin State Bar No. 103 8252

207 East Buffalo Street, Sulte’ 600
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
(414) 276-3333 telephone

(414) 276-2822 facsimile
rebarhes@bernhoftlaw.com
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
THE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

DIRECTOR OF PROFESSIONAL )
RESPONSIBILITY, )
)
Complainant, )
" )

V. ) Complaint Neo. 2003-2

) ' .
JOSEPH R. BANISTER, )
)
Respondent. )
)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that two copies of the foregoing “Respondent’s Notice of

Appeal and Appeal to the Secretary of the Treasury” were served on the parties

indicated below by placing same in the custody of the U.S. Postal Service postage

prepaid on January 23, 2004, as follows:

Two copies via first-class mail and two copies via ceftiﬁed mail to bp‘th of the

following:

John W, Snbw, Secretary of the Treasury Brien T. Downing, Director

U.S. Department of the Treasury
1500 Pennsylvania-Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20220

~ And one copy via first-class mail to:

Jay J. Kessler, Attorney

Office of Professional Responsibility
Internal Revenue Service

1111 Constitution Ave., N.W. Ste. 7238
Washington, D.C. 20224

Dept. of Treasury, IRS, Office of Chief Counsel

333 Market Street, Suite 1200
San Francisco, California 94105



Daniel Treuden

207 E. Buffalo Street

Suite 600
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
| (414) 276-3333
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA — STATE AND CONSUMER SFRVICES AGENCY oy ARNOLD SCHWARZENEGGER, Governor

[N : iy

Sutect - _{LIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY "+
me ot 2000 EVERGREEN STREET, SUITE 250
SACRAMENTO, CA 95815-3832
SuImer TELEPHONE: (916} 263-3680.
3 FACSIMILE: (916) 263-3675.
Aﬁﬁll'S WEB ADDRESS: hifp:/lwww.dca.ca.govicba
April 2,2004

“Joseph R. Banister

2282 Sunny Vista Drive
San Jose, CA 95128

Re: Case No. A-2004-28

Dear Mr. Banister:

| have reviewed Administrative Law Judge’s Wiilliam Moran’s decision in addition to your
50-page appeal, and | have one question:

Did you file Federal (Form 1040) and California (Form 540) income tax returns for the
years 1999- 20027 :

If the answer is yes, please provide copies of each return and the approximate date that
you filed each return. If the answer is no, please state so in writing.

If you have any queétions., please call me at (916) 263-3976.

Sincerely,

John E. O’ Connor
Investigative CPA
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\ o Joseph R. Banister
RN Certified Public Accountant
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“Gf ' VIA CERTIFIED MAIL #7003 2260 0000 1723 0421

April 30,2004

Mr. John O’Connor

Investigative CPA-

California Board of Accountancy
2000 Evergreen Street, Suite 250
Sacramento, California 95815-3832

Re:  Case No. A-2004-247

Dear Mr. O’Connor:

I provided my attorney Donald Kilmer with a copy of your letter dated April 2,
2004 (copy enclosed). He advised me to inform you that you should contact him directly
regarding the contents of your letter. Mr. Kilmer’s contact information is as follows:

Donald Kilmer

Attorney at Law

1261 Lincoln Avenue

San Jose, California 95125

(408) 998-8489 Office
(408) 998-8487 Facsimile

Sincerely,
Omﬁu Bawiy

Joseph R. Banister, C.P.A.

cc:  Donald Kilmer, Attorney at Law

Robert Barnes, Attorney at Law

c/o Box 90239
San Jose, California [95109-4239]
Office (408) 260-9819 Facsimile (408) 615-0819
www.josephbanister.com
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News Release

-Internal Revenue Service

Contact:

Philip Beasley
Dallas, Texas
214-413-5491

. phil.b.beasley@irs.cov

For Release: Immediately

IR-2004-93, July 13, 2004
CPA’'s Appeal of Disbarment Denied

WASHINGTON - The Treasury Department has denied the appeal of J oseph R. Banister from an
administrative law judge's decision that Banister be disbarred from practice before the Internal Revenue
Service. Banister is a Certified Public Accountant from San Jose and former IRS criminal investigation
agent. ' '

The IRS Office of Professional Responsibility, in a complaint against Banister, alleged that he
was misrepresenting the law to taxpayers and that he failed to file his own federal income tax
returns for tax years 1999-2002. OPR investigates allegations of disreputable conduct and
incompetence against tax practitioners and enforces the standards of practice for those who
represent taxpayers before the IRS, as detailed in Treasury Department Circular 230.

Judge William B. Moran in a Dec. 24,2003, decision found that Banister provided erroneous advice to
taxpayers, including improperly advising them that returns were not required because Sections 861
through 865 of the Internal Revenue Code define "source of income" in a manner which excluded the
income of U.S. citizens residing in the U.S. from U.S. tax. Banister also provided erroneous advice that
they were not required to file returns because the 16th Amendment to the Constitution was not properly
ratified. The original complaint against Banister was later amended to charge Banister with not filing his
own returns for tax years 1999-2002. : ‘

Banister filed an appeal of the judge's decision with the Department of the Treasury, citing

numerous alleged errors. In a decision dated June 25, 2004, David F.P. O'Connor, acting under a
delegation from the Secretary of the Treasury, affirmed Judge Moran's decision regarding erroneous

advice to taxpayers. O'Connor found that the Office of Professiona] Responsibility had not met its

file://D:\Documents%20and%2 OSettings\j ohno\Local%?_OSettings\Temp\d.notes.data\tmp. . 7/13/2004
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burden of proof with respect i the charge that Banister had failed to fii&'his own returns. He did not
send the case back to Judge Moran for further proceedings, during which the Office of Professional
Responsibility could have introduced the required additional evidence, because O'Connor agreed with
Judge Moran that the charges related to erroneous advice to taxpayers alone warranted disbarment from
practice before the IRS.

In rejecting Banister's claim that his advice to clients was protected speech, and that
sanctions under Circular 230 should not restrain zealous advocacy on behalf of taxpayers,
O'Connor said "zealous advocacy does not constitute license for the assertion of frivolous
positions.” O'Connor noted a number of court decisions in which Banister's positions on Section 861

~ and the 16™ Amendment have been rejected. He agreed with the spirit of Judge Moran's statement .
that "the 861 argument and the non-ratified Sixteenth Amendment argument share a related lunacy
in that, for differently concocted reasons, neither accomplishes the presumed goal of creating a
Federal income tax on U.S. citizens."

In ad'dressing the charges related to Banister's failure to file his own tax returns, O'Connor found
that the Office of Professional Responsibility had not met its burden of proof. The missing element was
evidence that Mr. Banister had gross income sufficient to trigger a filing obligation in each of the cited
tax years. »

O'Connor considered and rejected a number of claims that Banister raised regarding the fairness of the
discipline process and his opportunity to present his case to the Administrative Law Judge. As a result of

this decision, Banister has been disbarred from representing taxpayers before the IRS. He may appeal
the decision to U.S. District Court. '

Links on IRS.gov:

*  Bannister Appeal Decision - hitp://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-utl/bannister.appeal.decision.pdf

- @ IR-2004-5 - Judge Grants Request of IRS Office of Professional Responsibility to DisbaerPA;
http://www.irs.gov/newsroom/article/0.,,id=119380,00.html -

S -30-
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CA Codes (bpc:5100-5113) 5™, ,
™y A
' ' ) i J

I, _—

5100. After notice and hearing the board may revoke, suspend, or
refuse to renew any permit or certificate granted under Article 4
(commencing with Section 5070) and Article 5 (commencing with Section
5080), or may censure the holder of that permit or certificate for
unprofessional conduct that includes, but is not limited to, one or
any combination of the following causes: )

(a) Conviction of any crime substantlally related to the :
qualifications, functions and duties of a certified public accountant
or a public accountant.

(b) A violation of Section 478, 498, or 499 dealing with false
statements or omissions in the application for a license, in
‘obtaining a certificate as a certified public accountant, in
obtaining registration under this chapter, or in obtaining a permlt
to practice public accountancy under this chapter.

(c) Dishonesty, fraud, gross negligence, or repeated negligent
acts committed in the same or different engagements, for the same or
different clients, or any combination of engagements or clients, each
resulting in a violation of applicable professional standards that
indicate a lack of competency in the practice of public accountancy
or in the performance of the bookkeeping operations described in
Section 5052.

'(d) Cancellation, revocation, or suspension of a certificate or
other authority to practice as a certified public accountant or a
public accountant, refusal to renew the certificate or other
authority to practice as a certified public accountant or a public
accountant, or any other discipline by any other state or foreign
country. ’

" (e) Violation of Section 5097.

(f) Violation of Section 5120.

(g) Willful violation of this chapter or any rule or regulation
promulgated by the board under the authority granted under this
chapter.

(h) Suspension or revocation of the right to practice before any
governmental body or agency.

(i) Fiscal dishonesty or breach of flduc1ary responsibility of
any kind.

{(j) Knowing preparation, publication, or dissemination of false,
fraudulent, or materially misleading financial statements, reports)
or information.

(k)‘Embezzlement,.theft, misappropriation of funds or property, or
obtaining money, property, or other valuable consideration by
fraudulent means or false pretenses. ,

(1} The imposition of any discipline, penalty, or sanction on a .
registered public accounting firm or any associated person of such
firm, or both, or on any other holder of a permit, certificate,
license, or other authority to practice in this state, by the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board or the United States Securities
and Exchange Commission, or their designees under the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 or other federal legislation.

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=bpc&group=05001-06000&file=5...
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%ﬁ? . ~PARTMENT OF THE TREASUK .
N "INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE

Scp -1 2005 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20224

KECEIVE

2

. T ‘
c&gg&%ﬁgﬁ%&?  August 26, 2005
S ACRAMEN

John O’Connor

California Board of Accountancy
- 2000 Evergreen St.

Suite 250

Sacramento, CA 95815

Dear Mr. O’Connor,

Pursuant to your request, I am enclosing a copy of the decision on appeal in the case of
Director, Office of Professional Responsibility v. J. oseph R. Banister, Complaint No.
2003-02. T am certifying that this is an exact copy of our official file copy. In addition, I
am confirming that no appeal has been filed to a United States District Court from this
decision. A copy of this decision is also posted on the official IRS web site in the July
2004 newsroom archives. If you have any further questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me at 202-622-9730.

Sincerely,

s o

inchman Gray
Technical Advisor to the Director
Office of Professional Responsibility

Enc.





